

Complainant alleges that Respondent violated 46 U.S.C. 41102(c), 41104(a)(2), 41104(a)(10), and 41102(d), and 46 CFR 545.5 regarding a failure to establish, observe, and enforce just and reasonable practices relating to receiving, handling, storing, and delivering property; a failure to provide service in the liner trade that is in accordance with a service contract; an unreasonable refusal to deal or negotiate; and retaliation against a shipper. Complainant alleges these violations arose from a failure to allocate space as agreed upon and instead, allocating space to shippers willing to pay higher freight prices; a condition on performance requiring the payment of extracontractual prices and surcharges, such as peak season surcharges throughout more than 90% of the service contract period, prior to full performance of its service commitments; an unreasonable assessment of demurrage and detention charges during periods of congestion and shortages of equipment at ports; and a refusal to deal unless an amendment reducing the minimum quantity commitments under the service contract was agreed to.

An answer to the complaint must be filed with the Commission within twenty-five (25) days after the date of service.

The full text of the complaint can be found in the Commission's electronic Reading Room at <https://www2.fmc.gov/readingroom/proceeding/23-10/>. This proceeding has been assigned to the Office of Administrative Law Judges. The initial decision of the presiding judge shall be issued by September 12, 2024, and the final decision of the Commission shall be issued by March 27, 2025.

Jason Guthrie,

*Federal Register Alternate Liaison Officer,
Federal Maritime Commission.*

[FR Doc. 2023-20035 Filed 9-14-23; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-02-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[Docket No. 23-05]

Rahal International Inc., Complainant v. Hapag-Lloyd AG, Hapag-Lloyd (America), LLC, and Hapag-Lloyd USA, LLC, Respondents and Third-Party Complainants v. Maher Terminals, LLC, GCT New York LP, and GCT Bayonne PL, Third-Party Respondents; Notice of Filing of Third-Party Complaint

Served: September 8, 2023.

Notice is given that a third-party complaint has been filed with the

Federal Maritime Commission (the "Commission") by Hapag-Lloyd AG, Hapag-Lloyd (America), LLC, and Hapag-Lloyd USA, LLC (collectively, the "Third-Party Complainants") against Maher Terminals, LLC, GCT New York LP, and GCT Bayonne PL (collectively, the "Third-Party Respondents") in Docket No. 23-05. Third-Party Complainants state that the Commission has subject-matter jurisdiction over the third-party complaint under the Shipping Act of 1984, as amended, 46 U.S.C. 40101 *et seq.* (the "Shipping Act"), 46 CFR 502.12, and 46 CFR 502.62(b)(4), and further state that the Commission has personal jurisdiction over the Third-Party Respondents due to an alleged violation of the Shipping Act and the third-party claims arising out of a common nucleus of operative facts as those against Hapag-Lloyd AG, Hapag-Lloyd (America), LLC, and Hapag-Lloyd USA, LLC.

Complainant Rahal International Inc. is an independent importer and broker of high-quality fruit juices, concentrates, and purees in the United States, and is organized and existing under the laws of the state of Delaware with a principal place of business in Oak Brook, Illinois.

Respondent and Third-Party Complainant Hapag-Lloyd AG is a global ocean carrier company based in Hamburg, Germany.

Respondent and Third-Party Complainant Hapag-Lloyd (America), LLC is a United States subsidiary and agent of Hapag-Lloyd AG with its office located in Atlanta, Georgia.

Respondent and Third-Party Complainant Hapag-Lloyd USA, LLC is a United States subsidiary and agent of Hapag-Lloyd AG with its office located in Atlanta, Georgia.

Third-Party Complainants identify Third-Party Respondent Maher Terminals, LLC as a marine terminal operator located in Elizabeth, New Jersey. Third-Party Complainants identify Third-Party Respondents GCT New York LP and GCT Bayonne LP as a marine terminal operator located in Staten Island, New York.

Third-Party Complainants allege that Third-Party Respondents violated 46 U.S.C. 41102(c) regarding a failure to establish, observe, and enforce just and reasonable regulations and practices related to or connected with receiving, handling, storing, or delivering property. Third-Party Complainants allege this violation arose from Third-Party Respondents' full control and operation of the containers and their assessment, billing, and collection of the charges at issue in Complainant Rahal International Inc.'s Verified Complaint (the "Verified Complaint"), and seek, in

the event that the Commission finds Third-Party Complainants liable under the Verified Complaint, an order requiring Third-Party Respondents to pay for all damages assessed as a result of the Verified Complaint, along with attorneys' fees.

An answer to the third-party complaint must be filed with the Commission within twenty-five (25) days after the date of service.

The full text of the third-party complaint can be found in the Commission's electronic Reading Room at <https://www2.fmc.gov/readingroom/proceeding/23-05/>. This proceeding is assigned to the Office of Administrative Law Judges. The initial decision of the presiding judge shall be issued by July 1, 2024, and the final decision of the Commission shall be issued by January 15, 2025.

Jason Guthrie,

*Federal Register Alternate Liaison Officer,
Federal Maritime Commission.*

[FR Doc. 2023-20037 Filed 9-14-23; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-02-P

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Formations of, Acquisitions by, and Mergers of Bank Holding Companies

The companies listed in this notice have applied to the Board for approval, pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1841 *et seq.*) (BHC Act), Regulation Y (12 CFR part 225), and all other applicable statutes and regulations to become a bank holding company and/or to acquire the assets or the ownership of, control of, or the power to vote shares of a bank or bank holding company and all of the banks and nonbanking companies owned by the bank holding company, including the companies listed below.

The public portions of the applications listed below, as well as other related filings required by the Board, if any, are available for immediate inspection at the Federal Reserve Bank(s) indicated below and at the offices of the Board of Governors. This information may also be obtained on an expedited basis, upon request, by contacting the appropriate Federal Reserve Bank and from the Board's Freedom of Information Office at <https://www.federalreserve.gov/foia/request.htm>. Interested persons may express their views in writing on the standards enumerated in the BHC Act (12 U.S.C. 1842(c)).

Comments regarding each of these applications must be received at the Reserve Bank indicated or the offices of

the Board of Governors, Ann E. Misback, Secretary of the Board, 20th Street and Constitution Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20551-0001, not later than October 16, 2023.

A. Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago (Colette A. Fried, Assistant Vice President) 230 South LaSalle Street, Chicago, Illinois 60690-1414. Comments can also be sent electronically to

Comments.applications@chi.frb.org:

1. *Savanna-Thomson Investment, Inc., Savanna, Illinois*; to merge with Maximum Bancshares, Inc., and thereby indirectly acquire Fidelity Bank, both of West Des Moines, Iowa.

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System.

Michele Taylor Fennell,

Deputy Associate Secretary of the Board.

[FR Doc. 2023-20022 Filed 9-14-23; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE P

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

Agency Information Collection Activities; Proposed Collection; Comment Request; Extension

AGENCY: Federal Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: In accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (PRA), the Federal Trade Commission (FTC or Commission) is seeking public comment on its proposal to extend for an additional three years the Office of Management and Budget clearance for its Fuel Rating Rule (the Rule). The current clearance expires on September 30, 2023.

DATES: Comments must be filed by October 16, 2023.

ADDRESSES: Interested parties may file a comment online or on paper, by following the instructions in the Request for Comment part of the **SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION** section below. Written comments and recommendations for the proposed information collection should be sent within 30 days of publication of this notice to www.reginfo.gov/public/do/PRAMain. Find this particular information collection by selecting “Currently under 30-day Review—Open for Public Comments” or by using the search function. The [reginfo.gov](http://www.reginfo.gov) web link is a United States Government website produced by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) and the General Services Administration (GSA). Under PRA requirements, OMB’s Office of Information and Regulatory Affairs

(OIRA) reviews Federal information collections.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Hampton Newsome, Attorney, Division of Enforcement, Federal Trade Commission, Room CC-9528, 600 Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20580, (202) 326-2889.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Title: Fuel Rating Rule (the Rule), 16 CFR part 306.

OMB Control Number: 3084-0068.

Type of Review: Extension of a currently approved collection.

Likely Respondents:

(a) *Recordkeeping:* Refiners, Producers, Importers, Distributors, and Retailers of the Covered Fuel Types.

(b) *Disclosure:* Retailers of the Covered Fuel Types.

Estimated Annual Burden Hours: 31,976 (derived from 13,043 recordkeeping hours added to 18,933 disclosure hours).

Estimated Annual Labor Costs: \$481,374.¹

Estimated Annual Capital or Other Non-labor Costs: \$104,888.²

Abstract: The Fuel Rating Rule establishes standard procedures for determining, certifying, and disclosing the octane rating of automotive gasoline and the automotive fuel rating of alternative liquid automotive fuels, as required by the Petroleum Marketing Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. 2822(a)–(c). The Rule also requires refiners, producers, importers, distributors, and retailers to retain records showing how the ratings were determined, including delivery tickets or letters of certification.

Request for Comment

On May 2, 2023, the FTC sought public comment on the information collection requirements associated with the Rule. 88 FR 27514. No germane comments were received. Pursuant to the OMB regulations, 5 CFR part 1320, that implement the PRA, 44 U.S.C. 3501 *et seq.*, the FTC is providing this second opportunity for public comment while seeking OMB approval to renew the pre-existing clearance for the Rule.

Your comment—including your name and your state—will be placed on the public record of this proceeding. Because your comment will be made

¹ The hourly wage rates are updated from the 60-Day **Federal Register** notice and are based on mean hourly wages found at <http://www.bls.gov/iag/tgs/iag211.htm#earnings> for petroleum pump system operators, refinery operators, and gaugers and <http://www.bls.gov/iag/tgs/iag447.htm> for service station attendants. See Bureau of Labor Statistics, 2022 Occupational Employment Statistics for more details.

² This estimate is updated from the 60-Day **Federal Register** notice.

public, you are solely responsible for making sure that your comment does not include any sensitive personal information, such as anyone’s Social Security number; date of birth; driver’s license number or other state identification number, or foreign country equivalent; passport number; financial account number; or credit or debit card number. You are also solely responsible for making sure that your comment does not include any sensitive health information, such as medical records or other individually identifiable health information. In addition, your comment should not include any “trade secret or any commercial or financial information which . . . is privileged or confidential”—as provided by section 6(f) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 46(f), and FTC Rule 4.10(a)(2), 16 CFR 4.10(a)(2)—including in particular competitively sensitive information such as costs, sales statistics, inventories, formulas, patterns, devices, manufacturing processes, or customer names.

Josephine Liu,

Assistant General Counsel for Legal Counsel.

[FR Doc. 2023-19982 Filed 9-14-23; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6750-01-P

GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION

[Notice—PBS-2023-05; Docket No. 2023-0002; Sequence No. 26]

Draft Environmental Impact Statement for the Buildings at 202, 214, and 220 South State Street, Chicago, Illinois

AGENCY: Public Building Service (PBS), General Services Administration (GSA).

ACTION: Notice of availability (NOA).

SUMMARY: GSA, in cooperation with the Federal Protective Service (FPS) and in accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), announces the availability, and opportunity for public review and comment, of the Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) for the buildings at 202, 214, and 220 South State Street, Chicago, Illinois. GSA is considering two action alternatives (Alternative A, Demolition or Alternative B, Viable Adaptive Reuse of the buildings) and a No Action Alternative.

DATES: GSA will hold a public hearing for the Draft EIS on Monday, October 2, 2023, from 3:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. Central Daylight Time (CDT) at the Morrison Conference Center, Metcalfe Federal Building located at 77 West